
             NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee 

 
 
MONDAY, 6TH JULY, 2015 at 7.15 pm HRS[ Or on the rise of the Aspire meeting ]  CIVIC 
CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Berryman, Gunes, Hare, Morris, Stennett, Waters (Chair) and 

Weston 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)    
 
2. ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE MEETING WITH ASPIRE    
 
 Feedback from the earlier meeting with Aspire 

 
3. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of late items of urgent business. Late items will 

be considered under the agenda item they appear. New items will be dealt with at 
item 12 or 14 below.  
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority 

at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and 
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
consideration becomes apparent.  
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the 
member’ judgement of the public interest.   
 

5. RATIFICATION OF THE TERMS OF REFERENCE  (PAGES 1 - 2)  
 



 

2 

 To ratify the terms of reference for the Committee approved at Cabinet on the 16th 
June 2015. 
 

6. MINUTES  (PAGES 3 - 14)  
 
 To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 8 December 2014  and 16 March 

2015. 
 

7. MATTERS ARISING  (PAGES 15 - 16)  
 
8. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT : CHILDREN AND FAMILIES  (PAGES 17 - 48)  
 
 This report provides an analysis of the performance data and trends for an agreed set 

of measures relating to looked after children on behalf of the Corporate Parenting 
Advisory Committee. 
 

9. OFSTED REPORT  (PAGES 49 - 52)  
 
  This paper was requested following on from the report submitted to CPAC in 

December 2014 by way of update on progress relating to the Ofsted inspection. 
 

10. CLARIFY FUNDING FOR ASPIRE MEETINGS    
 
 Verbal update on funding arrangements for Aspire  

 
11. ROLE OF CORPORATE PARENT  (PAGES 53 - 74)  
 
12. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 As per Item 3. 

 
13. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC    
 
 That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for consideration of the 

following items as they contain exempt information as defined in Section 100a of the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1985): paras 1 & 2: namely information relating to any individual, and information 
likely to reveal the identity of an individual.    
 

14. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 As per Item 3 

 
15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
 Date of next meeting 5th October 2015 

 
 
 



 

3 

Bernie Ryan 
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance and 
Monitoring Officer 
5th Floor 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Philip Slawther 
Principal Committee Coordinator 
Tel: 0208 489 2957 
Fax: 0208 489 2660  
Email:philip.slawther2@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Published on 26th June 2015 

 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 

Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee 

 

Terms of Reference 

 

 

 

1. To be responsible for the Council’s role as Corporate parent for those children 
and young people who are in care; 

2. To ensure the views of children in care are heard; 
3. To seek to ensure that the life chances of children in care are maximized in 

terms of health, educational attainment and access to training and 
employment to aid the transition to a secure and fulfilling adulthood; 

4. To ensure that the voice and needs of disabled children are identified and 
provided for; 

5. To monitor the quality of care provided by the Council to Children in Care; 
6. To ensure that children leaving care have sustainable arrangements for their 

future wellbeing; and  
7. To make recommendations on these matters to the Cabinet or Cabinet 

Member for Children and Director of Children and Young People’s Service. 
 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 8 DECEMBER 2014 

 

Councillo rs Berrym an, Gunes, Hare, Morr is, St ennet t , Wat ers (Chair ) and 

West on 

 

 

 

CPAC324. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)  

 

There w ere no apo log ies for  absence. 

 

NOTED 

 

CPAC325. URGENT BUSINESS  

 

Nil it em s 

 

CPAC326. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

Nil 

 

CPAC327. MINUTES  

 

RESOLVED 

 

That  t he m inut es o f  t he m eet ing held  on 22 Sept em ber 2014 be agreed as 

an accurat e record o f  t he proceedings. 

 

 

CPAC328. MATTERS ARISING  

 

CPAC 22 – The Chair  repor t ed t hat  t he Annual repor t  w ould be repor t ed t o  

t he March 2015 m eet ing. 

 

CPAC 23 - Wit h  regard t o  fost er ing and m yst ery shopping Neelam  

Bhardw aja t o  liaise w it h  Monica Singh. 

 

CPAC329. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT : CHILDREN AND FAMILIES  

 

The Com m it t ee received an in t roduct ion o f  t he circu lat ed repor t  f rom  

Neelam  Bhardw aja. 

 

Ar ising f rom  t he in t roduct ion m em bers raised concerns and t ook a w ide 

rang ing d iscussion in  relat ion t o  t he fo llow ing po in t s/ issues: 

 

Areas for  focus 

 

– t arget s not  being ach ieved ef fect ively on Personal Educat ion Plans 

(51%) and d iscussions/ concerns expressed as t o  w hy t he process for  

com plet ion w as not  being adhered t o . Concerns t hat  all par t ies 

concerned w ere not  g iving t he p lans adequat e at t ent ion and a need t o  

Agenda Item 6Page 3



MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 8 DECEMBER 2014 
 

ensure com pliance, as par t  o f  per form ance assessm ent . Whilst  t here 

w as accept ance t hat  t here m ay be good reasons for  w hy t here m ay not  

be com pliance t he act ual f igure should  be h igher  as t he p lan w as a vit al 

t oo l in  t he key issues ident if ied  developm ent al st ages o f  t he ind ividual  

 

 

•  Adopt ion Figures  

 

Not ed t hat  f igures for  LBH had fallen and w het her  t he recent  

judgem ent  had had an im pact  on t im escales in  England overall. It  

w as not ed t hat  t he year  t o  dat e t he  average for  London w as 22. In  

response t o  a num ber o f  quer ies Ms  Walker  clar if ied  t hat  in  t erm s of  

t he  judgem ent  t he issue o f  adopt ion being t he only opt ion had 

been quest ioned and t he scenar io  o f  a ch ild  in  care being p laced for  

adopt ion t hen at  t he last  m om ent  a relat ive had com e forw ard – and 

t hat  alt hough t he ch ild  had been in long t erm  care and p laced and 

set t led, w it h  t he advent  o f  a relat ive t h is w ould requ ire t he fur t her  

assessm ent .  The d ichot om y w as t hat  t he adopt ion cour t  

recom m ended adopt ion but  t he Munday judgem ent  said  d if ferent .  

Ms Walker  added t hat  it  w as likely t hat  t hat  judgem ent  w ould  be 

challenged and w ould  t hen becom e case law . It  w as in  her  22 years 

exper ience t hat  no one case w as alike and in  assessing each case 

ind ividually w hilst  t he process cou ld  be com plet ed in  24/ 26 w eeks 

f rom  st ar t  t o  f in ish  it   w as alw ays dependent  on t he ind ividual  

m ult ip le com plexit ies o f  each case. 

 

It  w as not ed by Ms Bhardw aja t hat  as of  30 Oct ober  509 child ren w ere 

in  care and alt hough t h is rem ained h igh t he t arget  w as t o  reduce 

t h is t o  below  500 and t h is rem ained h igher  t han t he average in  

sim ilar  boroughs.  

 

Concerns w ere expressed in  relat ion t o  t he Care or  pat hw ay p lans 

and t he need t o  ensure t hat  all ch ild ren in  care had p lans com plet ed 

and in  response assurances w ere g iven re t he challenge t o  up t he 

num bers sim ilar  t o  t he ear lier  concerns in  relat ion t o  personal 

educat ion p lans. 

 

RESOLVED  

 

i. That  t he cont ent s of  t he repor t  be not ed; 

ii.  in  relat ion t o  t he low  percent age levels in  com plet ion o f  

Personal Educat ion Plans, o f f icers be request ed t o  re-

launch t he p lans w it h  Social Workers, t eachers and 

pup ils;  

iii. in  relat ion t o  t he low  com plet ion levels o f  child ren in  

care p lans, t here needed t o  be m ore em phasis t o  t he 

com plet ion o f  t hese p lans in  order  t o  m eet  t he necessary 

100% t arget s; and  

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 8 DECEMBER 2014 
 

iv. That  an progress updat e repor t  be subm it t ed t o  t he next  

m eet ing in  March 2015 specif ically in  relat ion t o  t h is ; 

 

 

ACTION : N BHARDWAJA/ J ABBEY 

 

 

CPAC330. CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOITATION (CSE)  

 

 

The Com m it t ee received a succinct  in t roduct ion t o  t he circu lat ed repor t  

f rom  t he In t er im  Direct or  o f  Ch ild ren ’s Services – Jon Abbey. 

 

A det ailed d iscussion o f  t he f ind ings o f  t he repor t  ensued and t he 

fo llow ing m ain  po int s w ere not ed. 

 

• Concerns expressed at the level of cases reported but the seemingly low 
number investigations pursued as a result. 

• In response to concerns from members as to the need to ensure that CSE was 
being acted on at the correct levels within Haringey, it was noted that for 
Children’s Services, the identification of CSE was embedded in ‘business as 
usual’, with  referrals being  made to children’s services from a wide range of 
partners – including schools, health, police and other agencies. Screening and, 
where appropriate, assessment take place in the First Response service that 
includes the Multi Agency Information Sharing Hub (MASH). 

• In response to clarification as to the function of MASE, it was noted that the 
Haringey Multi-Agency Sexual Exploitation (MASE) model was utilised to 
enable a more strategic partnership approach – sharing information on a case 
by case basis where CSE was identified as a factor. The MASE meeting 
provided an opportunity for the identified CSE leads for each agency to come 
together to: 

• review progress of cases and ensure action was being taken; 

• identify trends and problem locations, taking appropriate action to address 
issues; 

• consider cross-border issues and co-ordinate with other boroughs; 

• ensure that LAC at risk of CSE, and placed away from Haringey, were 
being protected by agencies in that area. 

 

• With regard to concerns expressed at the level of police expertise and 
involvement it was noted that that a CSE team within the Metropolitan Police 
worked within the Pan London Approach,  launched earlier in 2014 to work 
across 32 London Boroughs, with links with the local MASE, bringing a Pan-
London co-ordinated response in addition to local intelligence and actions. 

 

• With regard to clarification as to cases referred to LBH Children’s Services, the 
response to CSE in practice was: 

 
i) where there was significant risk of harm and the threshold for Child 

Protection met, a multi-agency strategy meeting to plan an investigation 
was convened which would possibly lead to an initial child protection 

Page 5



MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 8 DECEMBER 2014 
 

conference and a CP plan. Where CSE emerged as a factor, the case 
would also be referred to the MASE;  and 

 
ii) for cases that did not meet the threshold for Child Protection, where CSE 

emerged as a factor, the case was referred to MASE (currently via Quality 
Assurance service) with the purpose of multi-agency risk sharing and 
development of an action plan to address the issues raised across three 
levels of risk. 
 

• Members were advised that that  peer reviews were carried out and the recent 
pairing of LBH with LB Lambeth, and the outcomes of the review would be 
collated and lessons learned taken forward. 

• It was noted that the recent OFSTED findings had led to a number of 
recommendations underlining the need to strengthen LBH response to CSE,    
in summary: 
 

• better identifying the risk of CSE in assessments; 

• reviewing risks posed to looked after children in response to changing age 
and stage of life; and  

• the need to better shape and target LBH responses to groups of ‘hard to 
reach’ young people – including those involved in the criminal justice 
system – to improve their life chances. 

OFSTED provided two recommendations for the LSCB related to CSE: 
 

• to review the CSE multi-agency guidance to incorporate a link to girls and 
gangs work; 

• to accelerate plans to develop and agree the CSE strategy. 

An OFSTED thematic inspection on CSE was underway across a number of 
authorities (not Haringey), and that LBH would reflect on the findings from this 
and incorporate learning into its plans in due course. 

 

 

RESOLVED 

 
That the report, and the discussions and bullet points arising from consideration be 
noted. 

 

 

CPAC331. HARINGEY VIRTUAL HEAD ANNUAL REPORT  

 

The Com m it t ee received a succinct  in t roduct ion and br ief ing  t o  t he 

circu lat ed repor t  f rom  t he In t er im  Direct or  o f  Child ren ’s Services – Tracey 

Hut ch ings – head of the Virtual school. 

 
In particular Ms Hutchings highlighted page 5 of the annual report and advised  that 
GCSE results were good at 24%, and higher again over the national average for the 
previous year which was 16% for 5 A-C inc. English and Maths. Ms Hutchings 
advised that of the 41 young people in care for the full academic year, 28 had 
registered end of key stage 2 results and of that 28   10 made better than expected 

Page 6



MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 8 DECEMBER 2014 
 

progress (36%) and seven made expected progress (25%).  For the 11 (39%) who 
made less than expected progress the reasons included low attendance at school 
during years 10 and 11,  placed in hospital, secure provision or attending a 
residential education provision.  Also all of the young people who had made expected 
or better than expected progress (61%) had attended a mainstream school.  Many of 
the young people had been entitled to support through the looked after children pupil 
premium over the previous three years.  This had been used by schools for a variety 
of support including, tuition, technical equipment and additional activities. 
 
Ms Hutchings referred to page 7 of the annual report and advised  that in terms of end 
of key stage 1 results there were 18 children in care for all of Year 2 (i.e. in care as of 
Sept 1st 2013 and continued to be in care until the end of the academic year ), with LB 
Haringey achieving in 2 of 3 levels – reading -  83%, Writing 61%, Maths 83%, and 
overall Level 2 in Reading, Writing and Maths - 56%.  
 

The Com m it t ee asked a received clar if icat ion t o  som e of  t he po in t s w it h in  

t he repor t . 

 

The Chair  t hen sum m arised and it  w as: 

 
RESOLVED 

 

That the report be noted. 

 

CPAC332. OFSTED ACTION PLAN: GETTING TO GOOD  

 

The Chair  advised t hat  in  respect  o f  t he circu lat ed repor t  t here w as lit t le t o  

add t o  it  and t herefore it  w as for  t he Com m it t ee t o  not e it s cont ent s. 

 

Mr Abbey com m ent ed t hat  in  t erm s of  t he act ion p lan t here w as a great  

deal t o  now  w ork upon now  t hat  t he p lan w as em bedded.  Areas such as 

CSE w ere far  f rom  robust  st rat eg ies t o  be ef fect ive,  but  t here w ere a 

num ber o f  posit ives,  w h ich needed t o  be bu ilt  on.  It  w as fair  t o  say t hat  

t here had been a vast  im provem ent  in  t he past  12 m ont hs and every ef for t  

w as being m ade t o  asp ire t o  ‘good ’. 

 

Ms Bhardw aja com m ent ed t hat  in  t erm s of  t he rounded ef for t  o f  all 

services t o  aspire t o  ‘good ’ it  w as crucial t o  ensure t hat  any act ions ar ising  

f rom  t he act ion p lan  m ust  be cent red on im proving  out com es for  all  

ch ild ren and young people in  t he Borough. 

 
RESOLVED 

 

That the report be noted. 

 

 

CPAC333. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 

Nil 

 

Page 7



MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 8 DECEMBER 2014 
 

CPAC334. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  

 

Nil 

 

CPAC335. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 

Nil 

 

CPAC336. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 

Nil 

Cllr Ann Waters 

 

Chair 

 

 

Page 8



MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 16 MARCH 2015 

 

Councillo rs Berrym an, Gunes and Wat ers (Chair ) 

 

Apo log ies 

 

Also 

at t end ing 

 

Councillo rs Hare, Morr is, St ennet t  and West on 

 

Jon Abbey (In t er im  Direct or  o f  Child ren ’s Services), Neelam  

Bhardw aja (Assist ant  Direct or  – Safeguard ing and Social Care), 

Denise Gandy (Direct or  o f  Housing Dem and), Tracey Hut ch ings 

(Headteacher Virtual Head of School), Cath Hogan (Children in Care 
Service Manager), (Lesley Kettles (Children’s Service Manager), Paul 
McCarthy (Head of Service – Resources and Placements), (Vicky Monk-
Meyer (Special Education Needs), Natalie Layton (Clerk) 

 

CPAC337. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)  

 

Apo log ies for  absence w ere received f rom  Councillo rs Hare, Morr is and St ennet t  

and Lyn Carr ingt on . 

 

An apo logy w as received f rom  Councillo r  Gunes w ho had t o  leave ear ly (at  7pm  

dur ing t he in form al m eet ing w it h  Asp ire) t o  at t end anot her  m eet ing. 

 

NOTED t hat  f rom  7pm  t he m eet ing w as not  quorat e as on ly t w o m em bers w ere in  

at t endance, t herefore no form al decisions w ere m ade. 

 

CPAC338. ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE MEETING WITH ASPIRE  

 

NOTED t he act ions list ed in  t he not es o f  t he m eet ing w it h  Asp ire. 

 

In  response t o  quest ion ing it  w as conf irm ed t hat  t he Council d id not  fund Asp ire 

t hrough t he Yout h Service budget .  Fur t her  in form at ion clar ifying fund ing for  

Asp ire w ould  be provided. 

Action: Neelam Bhardwaja 

 

CPAC339. URGENT BUSINESS  

 

NONE 

 

CPAC340. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

NONE 

 

CPAC341. MINUTES  

 

 

The m inut es o f  t he m eet ing held  on 8 Decem ber 2014 w ere conf irm ed as a correct  

record but , due t o  t here being on ly t w o m em bers in  at t endance and t he m eet ing 

not  being quorat e, t he m inut es w ould  be form ally approved at  t he next  m eet ing. 

 

CPAC342. MATTERS ARISING  

 

Page 9



MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 16 MARCH 2015 
 

a. Child Sexual Exp lo it at ion 

 

Jon Abbey, In t er im  Direct or  o f  Ch ild ren ’s Services, updat ed t he Com m it t ee 

on t he Council’s Child  Sexual Exp lo it at ion (CSE) aw areness cam paign. 

 

NOTED t hat  

 

• a t ask and f in ish group had m et  four  t im es and devised a st rat egy, 

w hich had been signed-of f  by t he Local Safeguard ing Children Board 

(LSCB); 

 

• t he f ive recom m endat ions o f  t he pan-London peer  review  w ere being 

considered t o  ensure t hey w ere ref lect ed in  t he Council’s CSE act ion 

p lan and st rat egy pr ior it ies; 

 

• post ers focussing on CSE w ere provided in  safeguard ing packs and 

sent  t o  Har ingey schools and businesses; 

 

• bot h w eb-based and face-t o-face t rain ing on recognising CSE w ere 

availab le t o  st af f . 

 

CPAC343. LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN & HEALTH CHECKS PERFORMANCE UPDATE  

 

RECEIVED t he report  on Perform ance for  t he Year t o  January 2015, included in  t he 

agenda pack (pages 7 t o  29).   

 

NOTED in  response t o  d iscussion: 

 

• t he im provem ent  in t he num ber o f  Looked Af t er  Child ren (LAC) w it h  up t o  

dat e dent al checks; 

 

• f igures on t he Council’s posit ion on perm anency p lans w ould  be provided at  

t he next  m eet ing; 

Action: Neelam Bhardw aja 

 

• som e concent rat ed w ork w as being done t o  reduce t he num ber o f  ch ild ren 

go ing m issing f rom  care, t h is included po lice in t elligence on  m issing 

ch ild ren w hich t he Council cou ld  m at ch w it h  it s records; 

 

• t here had been an im provem ent  in  t he num ber o f  Personal Educat ion Plans 

(PEP) being com plet ed since pub licat ion o f  t he repor t  but  t he t eam  w as st ill 

no t  at  an accept ab le level and social w orkers w ere being challenged about  

t h is.  Reasons for  non com plet ion o f  PEPs w it h in t im escales included st af f  

t u rnover  and lack o f  in form at ion and narrat ive t hreads on t he in form at ion 

syst em .  Going forw ard t he Mosaic in form at ion record ing syst em  w ould  be 

used t o  aut om at ically f lag  up w hen new  PEP m eet ings should  be booked; 

 

• t he Com m it t ee acknow ledged t hat  som e ch ild ren w ere t oo busy t o  engage 

in  t he process o f  PEP m eet ings or  felt  t hat  t hey w ere repet it ive or  d id not  

Page 10



MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 16 MARCH 2015 
 

w ant  t o  be seen w it h  social w orkers in  school.  It  w as not ed, how ever, t hat  

PEPs w ere a legal requ irem ent ; 

 

• in  response t o  quest ion ing it  w as report ed t hat  approxim at ely 70% of  t he 21 

fost er  carers recent ly recru it ed w ere based in  Har ingey.  More det ails on 

t heir  locat ions w ould  be provided at  t he next  m eet ing.  It  w as 

acknow ledged t hat  having carers in  o t her  boroughs w as benef icial and t hat  

Har ingey used carers in  Sout h  London w it h  exper ience in  special needs; 

Action: Jon Abbey 

 

• NRS conduct ed t he Council’s fost er  carer  adver t ising cam paigns and had 

been deliver ing good carers for  young ch ild ren but  t he focus w as now  on 

f ind ing carers for  t eenagers as ado lescent s w ere m ore d if f icu lt  t o  p lace; 

 

• NRS carers w ere cheaper t hat  IFA carers by £300-400 per  w eek.  Som e IFA 

carers had t aken t he decision t o  becom e perm anent  Har ingey carers and 

w ere go ing t hrough t he assessm ent  process; 

 

• NRS w as paid  by resu lt s and received £6,000 for  each fost er  carer  t hey 

delivered t o  t he Council and included all t he m arket ing and assessm ent  

cost s. The Council w as able t o  screen candidat es at  an ear ly st age, before 

t hey w ere accept ed; 

 

• recent  adver t ising using banners on d isp lay around t he Borough par t icu lar ly 

on school railings had been cost  ef fect ive, w it h  a good num ber o f  

prospect ive carers com ing forw ard in t he w est  o f  t he Borough.  There 

w ould  be a long assessm ent  process and o f f icers w ould  repor t  back t o  t he 

Com m it t ee on t he num ber o f  successfu l carers recru it ed t hrough t he 

adver t ising banners. 

Action: Jon Abbey 

 

AGREED t o  not e t he repor t . 

 

CPAC344. CARE FOR DISABLED CHILDREN  

 

RECEIVED t he report  on Looked Af t er  Child ren w it h  Special Educat ional Needs and 

Disab ilit ies (SEND), pages 15 t o  20 o f  t he agenda pack, as laid out  in  t he repor t . 

 

NOTED t hat  

 

• t he conversion f rom  St at em ent s t o  Educat ion, Healt h  and Social Care Plans 

(EHC) w ould  assist  in  def in ing t he services requ ired for  ear ly help and 

in t ervent ion; 

 

• each local aut hor it y w orked w it h d if ferent  t hresho lds for  com piling  EHC 

p lans and, in  relat ion t o  out er  borough p lacem ent s, t he resident  borough 

w as responsib le for  conduct ing EHC p lans; 

 

Page 11



MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 16 MARCH 2015 
 

• all but  t w o o f  t he ch ild ren in Har ingey’s resident ial care hom es had special 

educat ional needs; t he needs w ere m ain ly around aut ism  and m ent al healt h . 

 

AGREED t o  not e t he repor t . 

 

CPAC345. UPDATE ON USE OF PUPIL PREMIUM GRANT  

 

RECEIVED t he report  updat ing on Pupil Prem ium  Plus Expendit ure on Children 

and Young People in  Care, pages 21 t o  29 o f  t he agenda pack. 

 

REPORTED t hat  

 

• t he Vir t ual School m anaged t he Pupil Prem ium  (PP) fund for  Looked Af t er  

Child ren (LAC) and held  schools t o  account  for  how  t he m oney w as used.  PP 

spending should  link w it h  PEPs (Personal Educat ion Plans);  

 

• com m unit y schools received t he PP for  LAC d irect ly in  t heir  budget s. Out  o f  

borough schools w ere requ ired t o  invoice t he local aut hor it y and som e had 

not  yet  done so, desp it e t he Service rem ind ing t hem  by let t er , phone call 

and em ail; 

 

• t he Vir t ual School’s service used funds product ively t o  im prove t he 

at t ainm ent  o f  Year  6 pupils, and science learn ing, and, t o  run a t raum a 

recovery p ilo t  schem e in  par t nersh ip  w it h  t he DfE.  Any unspent  PP funds 

had t o  be ret urned t o  t he Depart m ent  for  Educat ion (DfE).   

 

NOTED, fur t her  t o  quest ions, t hat  

 

• schools w ere responsib le for  just ifying t he use o f  t he m oney against  t he 

at t ainm ent  o f  pup ils and it  w as recognised t hat  schools of t en had m any 

ch ild ren t o  repor t  on; 

 

• som e schools had refused t o  app ly for  t he PP funding and so not  all t he 

m oney allocat ed for schools had been claim ed; 

 

• t he Mat hs Club provided by Vir t ual Schools (using PP funds) w as a f ive- w eek 

course for  a sm all group o f  5 or  6 ch ild ren;  

  

AGREED t o  not e t he repor t . 

 

CPAC346. DIVERSIONARY ACTIVITIES UPDATE  

 

AGREED t hat  t he repor t  on Diversionary Act ivit ies w ould  be present ed at  t he next  

m eet ing. 

Action: Clerk & Jon Abbey  

 

CPAC347. ADOPTION PERFORMANCE  

 

Page 12



MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 16 MARCH 2015 
 

REPORTED t hat  t he let t er  f rom  Edw ard Tim pson MP had indicat ed t hat  t he Council 

w as not  per form ing w ell based on one per form ance ind icat or . Har ingey w as one 

o f  11 local aut hor it ies w ho had received sim ilar  let t ers about  not  m eet ing t arget s. 

 

NOTED fur t her  t o  d iscussion and quest ions t hat : 

 

• t he Council had conduct ed it s ow n d iagnost ic assessm ent  of  t he adopt ion 

service and had im proved t racking in  order  t o  link ch ild ren w it h  fam ilies at  

ear ly st ages; 

 

• t he Council t ook par t  in  ‘f inders m eet ings’ as par t  o f  a w ider  consor t ium ; 

 

• 33 ch ild ren had been p laced in  adopt ion t h is year  and w ait ing t im es had 

reduced f rom  an average o f  628 days t o  570 days; t he t arget  being 487 days; 

 

• t he Children ’s Act  requ ired local aut hor it ies and adopt ion agencies t o  assess 

m ore people in  t he adopt ion process and t o  exhaust  all possib ilit ies o f  

pot ent ial candidat es.  Evidence had t o  be provided, in  cour t , t o  show  t hat  

decisions w ere m ade in  t he best  in t erest s o f  t he ch ild ; 

 

• ext ended fam ily w ere ab le t o  be form ally assessed as pot ent ial adopt ion 

candidat es even if  t hey w ere not  f inancially secure or  w ere not  in   st ab le 

relat ionsh ips. As part  o f  t hese assessm ent s t he Council had t o  exp lore t he 

availab le support  t o  cand idat es (for  exam ple, in  areas such as st opp ing 

sm oking or  dealing w it h  obesit y), w h ich p laced considerab le st rain  on 

Council resources; 

 

• t here had been a r ise in  num bers o f  parent s opt ing for  Special Guardiansh ip  

Orders. 

 

AGREED t o  not e t he updat e and t hat  w ork w as on-go ing t o  im prove adopt ion 

rat es. 

 

CPAC348. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 

None. 

 

CPAC349. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  

 

None. 

 

CPAC350. MINUTES  

 

None. 

 

CPAC351. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT EXEMPT BUSINESS  

 

None. 

 

Page 13



MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 16 MARCH 2015 
 

CPAC352. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 

Fut ure m eet ings 

 

NOTED t he fo llow ing dat es: 

 

6 Ju ly 2015 

5 Oct ober  2015 

5 January 2016 

 

All m eet ings are scheduled t o  st ar t  at  6.30pm . 

 

 

Cllr Ann Waters  

Chair 

 

The m eet ing ended at  21:45 hours. 

 

 

Page 14



Corporate Parenting Agenda Planning 2015/16 
 
 

Ayshe Simsek Ext 2929 

Corporate 
Parenting 
meeting Date  

 Agenda Items  Lead Officer 

6th July 2015 
 
 
 
 

1. Performance 
 

2. CPAC and Aspire notes with  
update on actions 

 

 
3. Ofsted update  

 
 

• Previous Minutes from 8/12 & 
16/03 
 

Action Updates 
 

4. Information on locations of 
new foster carers. 

 

5. Update on no. of carers 
recruited through advertising 
banners 

 

6. Clarify funding for Aspire 
meetings. 

 
Draft Reports will be due with Jon 
Abbey on 19th June and due for 
publication on 26th June 

Margaret 
Gallagher/Richard 
Hutton 
Cath Hogan 
 
 
Jon Abbey 
 
 
Jon Abbey 
 
 
 
 
Jon Abbey 
 
 
Jon Abbey 
 
 
 
Neelam 
Bhardwaja 
 
 
 

5th October 
2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. Performance 
2. CPAC and Aspire notes   
3.  Report on Diversionary 

Activities. 
4.Figures on Permanency Plans 
for Looked After Children 

 
 
 Draft Reports will be due  with Jon 
Abbey on 18th September  and due 
for publication on the 25th 
September. 

 

5 Jan 2016 1. Performance 
2. CPAC and Aspire notes   

  Draft Reports will be due with Jon 

 

Agenda Item 7Page 15



Corporate Parenting Agenda Planning 2015/16 
 
 

Ayshe Simsek Ext 2929 

Abbey on 17th December and due for 
publication on the 24th December 
2015 

 4th April 2016 1. Performance 
2. CPAC and Aspire notes   

 Draft Reports will be due   with Jon 
Abbey on the 18th March and due for 
publication on the 25th March. 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 16



 
 

Report for: 
Corporate Parenting 
Advisory Committee  
6 July 2015 

Item 
Number: 

 

 

Title: 
Performance for the year to May 2015 including summary of 
2014/15 End of Year Performance 

 

Report 
Authorised by: 

 
 
Jon Abbey  
Interim Director,  Children’s Services    

 

Lead Officer: 
Margaret Gallagher  
Corporate Performance Manager 

 

 
Ward(s) affected:    All 

 
Non Key Decision: 
 

 
1.  Introduction 
 
1.1. This report provides an analysis of the performance data and trends for an agreed 

set of measures relating to looked after children on behalf of the Corporate 
Parenting Advisory Committee. 
 

1.2. Section 2 contains performance highlights and key messages identifying areas of 
improvement and Section 3 indicates areas for focus.  
 

1.3. Section 4 provides an overall assessment of performance in the service as relating 
to Children in Care so that Members can assess progress in key areas within the 
context of the Local Authorities role as Corporate Parent. 
 

1.4. Section 5 (appendix)  provides detailed key data in relation to children becoming 
looked after, and our performance on fostering and adoption in Haringey. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 8Page 17



2 

 

 
 
Performance Highlights/ Key Messages 

 
2.  Positive or Improving Performance 

 
� 453 children were in care on the last day of May 2015 or 77 per 10,000 population 

including 29 unaccompanied asylum seeker children. This is 24 fewer than at the 
end of January 2015 and equates to a 10.6% reduction since March 2014.  However 
although we have closed the gap with our statistical neighbour rate (70), Haringey 
remains above the national average rate of 60 per 10,000 population. 
 

� There were 54 adoptions and special guardianship orders (SGOs) in 2014/15. 
The target was exceeded and permanency was secured for 22% of children who 
ceased to be looked after.  In April and May 2015 there have been 6 adoptions and 2 
SGOs. 
 

� In 2014/15, children waited an average of 589 days from becoming looked after 
to being placed for adoption. This is a significant improvement on 2013/14 
although higher than the national threshold (487 day average for 2012-15). 
Haringey’s three year average (2011/14) of 725 days is better than our statistical 
neighbour position of 769 days. The average days for the 6 adoptions to May 2015 is 
468 days. 
 

� In 2014/15 we had fewer recorded episodes of looked after children going 
missing, 22 down from 36 the previous year. Numbers of children missing from care 
remain low. A task and finish group is working on bringing together multi-agency 
datasets on children missing from home, care and education for matching and 
learning so that analysis and activity can be reported to the LSCB. A Haringey 
Runaway and Missing from Home and Care Protocol is being completed by all 
agencies which  will strengthen our approach to supporting all children who run away 
or go missing in the area. 
 
Indicators around stability of placements for looked after children remain in line 
with statistical neighbours and targets. In 2014/15,  7.5% of children had 3 or more 
placement moves. This has reduced to 6% at the end of May. 
 

� 77 children or 18% were placed 20 miles or more from Haringey at the end of 
March 2015, slightly more than the 16% target but on an improving trajectory. At the 
end of May there was a further reduction with 73 out of 422 (17%) children placed 20 
miles or more. 
 

� In 2014/15,  92% (326 out of 355 children) of LAC children had an up to date health 
assessment, an improvement from the 88% reported last year, now in line with the 
2013/14 London average and above the England position of 88%.  
 

� 91% of LAC children had an up to date dental visit as at 31 March 2015, a 
significant improvement from the 71% achieved the previous year and exceeding the 
2013/14 London average of 88% and national position of 84%. 
 

Page 18



3 

 

� Haringey’s performance for care leavers aged 19-21 in higher education (16%) 
compares very favourably with the national position of 6%. 

 
3. Areas for Focus 

 
� Performance on care leavers in suitable accommodation and in education, 

employment and training is below levels achieved last year albeit that the variation 
between Haringey and published national performance levels for 2013/14 in these 
areas is not significant. However benchmarking data around care leavers in 
education, employment and training shows that Haringey’s position of 40% is below 
average for London in 2014/15 (57%).  
 

� Despite exceptional educational achievement for our looked after children, only 37% 
of school age children have a completed and up to date Personal Education Plans 
(PEP). This is a decline on recent months and remains below the expected level. An 
action plan to prioritise completion of PEPs is being implemented and is expected to 
yield improved results in the next 7 weeks before the schools break up.  
 
49% of looked after children have an up to date Care Plan at the end of May, down 
from the position of 67% at the end of February and remaining  below the expected 
level. This area continues to remain a challenge with staffing pressures having an 
impact on both the consistency and timely completion of plans. 
 

� 78% of Children in Care visits were recorded as completed in the relevant 
timescales in May.  Performance in this area has dipped from levels of 95% 
achieved in previous years.  However,  it is understood that this is predominantly a 
recording issue and with visits taking place in a timely way. 
 

� The average care proceedings duration in 2014/15 was 34 weeks (including cases 
commenced in 2013/14) with trends towards cases of longer duration than the 26 
weeks statutory minimum.  66% of 77 cases relating to 132 children were concluded 
in over 26 weeks. Although the average case duration is lower than at January 2013 
(71 weeks) and it reduced to 26 weeks in the period between June 13 and  May 14 , 
it remains higher than the latest national comparator data which shows an average 
case duration of 30 weeks.  
 

� 21(8.4%) of looked after children (aged 10 and over) were convicted or subject to 
a final warning during the year 2014/15, a small increase on our 2013/14 figure.  In 
2012/13 Haringey had a comparatively high proportion of looked after children with 
convictions (11.1%). This remains higher than the latest published England average 
rate of 5.6%.  
 

Page 19



4 

 

 

 

4.  Children Looked After 
 

4.1. There has been a 10.6% reduction in the number of children in care since the end 
of March 2014. This progress and steady downward trajectory over the last 3 years 
means we are moving towards alignment with the level in similar boroughs. Our rate 
of 77 children in care per 10,000 population compares with our statistical neighbour 
average rate of 70 per 10,000 and 60 nationally.  
 

4.2. The graph below depicts the decrease in Haringey’s children in care numbers over 
the past 5 years and illustrates our comparative position with statistical neighbour 
and London averages over a 7 year period. Comparator data for 2014/15 will be 
available later in the year. 
 

0

1 0 0

2 0 0

3 0 0

4 0 0

5 0 0

6 0 0

7 0 0

0

1 0 0

2 0 0

3 0 0

4 0 0

5 0 0

6 0 0

7 0 0

2 0 0 7 / 0 8 2 0 0 8 / 0 9 2 0 0 9 / 1 0 2 0 1 0 / 1 1 2 0 1 1 / 1 2 2 0 1 2 / 1 3 2 0 1 3 / 1 4 2 0 1 4 / 1 5

C h i ld r e n  in  c a r e  in c lu d in g  u n a c c o m p a n ie d  a s y lu m  s e e k in g  c h i ld r e n

H a r i n g e y

S N  A v e r a g e

L o n d o n  A v e r a g e

B a b y   P

 
  

4.3. In 2014/15 195 children become looked after, a 16% decrease on the 2013/14 
position (38 fewer children) compared with the previous year. 249 children ceased 
to be looked after in 2014/15 a net decrease in the cohort of 51 children. The 
graph below shows the net care movement in 2014/15 and shows a net reduction in 
the looked after children population month on month since July 2014. However the 
rate of decrease is slowing and the number of children in care has not decreased 
any further as at May 2015,  with numbers in June showing a slight increase. 
 

- 4 0

- 3 0

- 2 0

- 1 0

0

1 0

2 0

3 0

4 0

A p r - 1 4 M a y - 1 4 Ju n - 1 4 Ju l - 1 4 A u g - 1 4 S e p - 1 4 O c t - 1 4 N o v - 1 4 D e c - 1 4 Ja n - 1 5 F e b - 1 5 M a r - 1 5 A p r - 1 5

N e t  c a r e  m o v e m e n t  A p r i l  2 0 1 4  - A p r i l  2 0 1 5

s t a r t e d c e a s e d n e t  p o s i t i o n

 

Page 20



5 

 

4.4. There has been an increase in the number of young people who started to be 
looked after under police protection; 63 in 2014/15 (31%). (54 children, 23% in 
2013/14) There was a decrease in the number of children becoming looked after 
on remand from 29 to 15 in 2014/15. 
 

4.5. There was a 55% reduction in the number of children becoming looked after on 
an interim care order from 42 to 19. All placements are monitored carefully and 
reviewed at Resources Panel regularly. Numbers of children becoming looked 
after under section 20 (voluntary arrangement with parental consent) have 
remained relatively stable with 102 children becoming looked after on section 20 in 
2014/15, 50% of the total number of children that became looked after in 2014/15. A 
programme of work around permanency continues to ensure that edge of care 
services are optimised to prevent children becoming looked after where appropriate. 
 

4.6. The proportion of looked after children placed 20 miles or more from Haringey 
reduced in 2014/15 to 18% (77 children) and fewer children are placed outside the 
local authority boundary. Some of this improvement is attributable to an increase in 
carers in the borough and some to the Edge of Care panel who review all 
placements for new children coming into care and where preferable divert children 
away from care through more acute packages of support.. Targeted recruitment of 
carers in the borough is progressing with 24 foster carers approved and recruited in 
2014/15, 22 of these through a new contract with NRS. A continued focus on 
recruitment of carers for young people age 11+ and long term carers is part of the 
new sufficiency and permanency policy planning.  

 

4.7. As at the end of May 2015 17% (73 out of 422) looked after children were placed 20 
miles or more from Haringey. 

 

4.8. The pie chart below shows the breakdown of placements 20 miles plus at  
31 March 2015. 
 

 

Page 21



6 

 

4.9  We are improving our approach to placements and working actively with 
Independent Fostering Agency (IFA) foster carers. At the end of March 342 
children were in Fostering placements, 52 of these placed with relatives or friends, a 
reduction of 39 fostering placements since 1 April 2014. In line with the reduction of 
looked after children in 2014/15 there has been a net reduction across all types of 
paid provision.  
 

4.10 Four children were missing from care during the month of May and no children 
were away from their placement without authorisation. The Lead Member and DCS 
are briefed on missing looked after children at a weekly meeting, which includes the 
review of the return to care interviews to ensure themes and pertinent issues are 
picked up and addressed immediately. 
 

4.11 Visits to looked after children are at their lowest level for some time performance 
at the end of May shows that 78% of children have been seen in accordance with the 
required frequency in their care plan, down on levels achieved in 2014/15 and earlier 
years. However managers are undertaking line by line checks to ensure that all visits 
showing as outstanding are completed, properly recorded and reasons for any visits 
that have not taken place are understood. 

 
4.12 At the end of March 2015, 34 children or 7.5% had 3 or more placements and 74% 

of children under 16 who had been in care for at least 2.5 years had been in the 
same placement for at least 2 years, similar to our statistical neighbour average. 
Together these measures of stability suggest quality matching of the child’s needs 
and can be associated with better outcomes. The proportion with three or more 
placements at the end of May is 6.4% (29 out of 453 children) and 74% of those 
looked after for 2.5 years or more had been in the same placement for at least 2 
years. 
 
Personal Education Plans 
 

4.13 As at 1 June 2015, 37% of school age children had completed and up to date 
Personal Education Plans (PEP). This area has seen significant decline in recent 
months. However the Children in Care service and the Virtual School are working 
together closely to examine the barriers and challenges and develop a strengthened 
approach to ensuring PEPs are completed.   

 
4.14 5% of children have no PEP and nearly 50% of children have PEPs which are older 

than 6 months and need to be updated. Approximately a quarter of these are 
between 6-8 months old but around 30% are between 10 months and over a year 
old. An action plan to prioritise completion of PEPs is being implemented and is 
expected to yield improved results before the schools break up. Agreed remedial 
actions include: 
 

• The Head of Virtual School has organised a lunchtime seminar on 12 June with 
social workers to look at outstanding and out of date PEPs for pupils in year 6. 
Future sessions will focus on the completion of PEPs for year 10 and year 11 
pupils where analysis shows have the largest proportion of out of date PEPs. 
 

Page 22



7 

 

• Cleansing the PEP cases which appear to be incomplete on Mosaic- this 
equates to about 30 PEPs which have been initiated but are sitting as 
incomplete on the system perhaps because of duplication or because the case 
was re-assigned. 
 

• All PEPs which are not up to date to be time-banded with management 
information provided weekly prioritising the most out of date PEPs. 
 

• The workflow on Mosaic is being amended to enable task reminders. 
 

• Identify a PEP champion from the service and establish regular surgeries to 
support staff in completing quality PEPs. 
 

• Look at ways to reduce bureaucracy in the system and make the task of 
completing the PEP as simple as possible. 

 
Care Leavers 
 

4.15 There has been an increase across all three age groups for care leavers in 14/15. 
Performance on care leavers in suitable accommodation has declined and is 
below levels achieved in previous years. 70% (55 out of 79) of the 19 year old cohort 
in 2014/15 were in suitable accommodation down from 78% in 2013/14. 65% of the 
20 year old cohort and 61% of 21 year old cohort were in suitable accommodation 
this year.  Across the 3 age groups,  65% of care leavers were in suitable 
accommodation, down from the 72% achieved in 2013/14 and below the national 
average of 78%.  
 

4.16 Care leavers in Education, Training and Employment (ETE) also reduced at all 
age groups and is below levels achieved in previous years although the 19 and 21 
year old cohorts appear to have increased by over a third this year compared to 
2013/14. In 2014/15 46% (36 out of 79) of the 19 year old cohort were in ETE, 35% 
of the 20 year old cohort and 39% of the 21 year old cohort. Across the 3 age groups 
this equates to 40% of the cohort in Education, Employment and Training which is 
below the 2014/15 average for London 57% (based on 10 returns) and national 
published levels achieved in 2013/14 of 44%.  

 
 Care Proceedings 

 
4.17 An ambitious measure around 26 week care proceedings was introduced to cut 

delays in the court process so that children could be found a permanent home more 
quickly, minimizing uncertainy and the potential  harm that can do to their 
development. The North London Tri-Borough Care Proceedings Project (NLCPP) 
was set up to reduce avoidable delay and to improve decision making for children 
subject to care proceedings. The work of this pilot should ensure that proceedings 
are only issued in circumstances where the child is likely to need a permanence plan 
and that pre proceedings work to engage parents is done beforehand. 

 
4.18 Performance suggests an overall trend of increasing care proceedings case 

duration and the consortium’s aim to complete the majority (70%) of cases within 
the 26 week timescale was not achieved. Of the completed cases in the year to the 

Page 23



8 

 

end of March 2015 34% were completed within 26 weeks. The Government has 
admitted that the 26-week target to decide whether a child is taken into care is 
“highly unlikely” to ever be met for all cases.  
 

4.19 Part of the reason the target was not achieved is that Haringey is deemed to have a 
larger proportion of complex cases which are determined to be ‘exceptional’ and 
therefore unlikely to be concluded in the 26 week timescale.  

 
4.20 The outcome of only 42% of care proceedings was for children to be placed in 

alternate permanent care through adoption or long term fostering. For 37% the 
outcome was to remain or return to their parents’ care raising the question of 
whether this was the necessary route to achieve this outcome. 21% of children 
remained in their family of origin by special guardianship order.  

 
4.21 However there has been a significant reduction in the number of current care 

proceedings, 27 cases compared with 56 in October 2014 and the reduction in the 
number of applications suggests improvement in social work practice pre care 
proceedings. It is expected that the improved pre-care proceedings work being 
undertaken will begin to impact on the duration of care proceedings and will evidence 
that all alternate placement options have been explored rigorously at the point of 
application. 
 
 
Adoption and Permanency 
 

4.22 In 2014/15 there were 22 adoptions and 32 special guardianship orders (SGO) 
although 10 fewer than achieved in 2013/14. Focused and targeted work to achieve 
adoption for children with adoption plans in 2013 and 2014 was successful with 
Haringey’s adoption numbers significantly higher than the average for our statistical 
neighbours (38 against SN average of 23). Since then, and in line with national 
changes in case law and the adoption landscape,  more children are achieving 
permanency with connected persons in special guardianship placements. 

 
4.23 There was an increase particularly in special guardianship orders in the last quarter 

of 2014/15 with 14 orders going through, taking the total for the year to 32, 6 more 
than in 2013/14. Adoption and special guardianship targets were exceeded and 
8.8% of children who ceased to be looked after were adopted. When SGOs are 
included 22% achieved a form of legal permanency. Over a 3 year period 2011-14 
Haringey’s proportion of children adopted (8%) remains below that of our statistical 
neighbours (9.8%) and the national position (14%) although a substantial work 
programme is in place to improve on this via the Sufficiency agenda. 

 
4.24 In April and May 2015 there have been 6 adoptions and 2 special guardianship 

orders, a similar level to this point in 2014/15. It is agreed that a sustainable volume 
of adoptions going forward is 20 per year. 
 

4.25 The average number of days taken for looked after children to be placed for 
adoption for those children adopted in the period reduced to 589 days for the year 
from 778 days in 2013/14. This is a positive direction of travel although performance 
remains 102 days above the national threshold (487 day average for 2012-15Current 

Page 24



9 

 

performance compares favourably with the latest available comparator data for 
England of 628 days for the three year rolling average (2011-14) and 769 days for 
our statistical neighbours.  In the year to May 2015 the average number of days for a 
child to be placed for adoption has further reduced to 468 days. 

 
4.26 In 2014/15 where times for children who are adopted by their foster family are 

stopped at the date the child moved in with the foster family, the average wait 
reduced to 415 days, an improvement of 100 days compared with the previous year. 
These figures relate to the timeliness for 22 adoptions in 2014/15 but Haringey’s 
performance remains better than the 3 year average (2011-14) of 521 days for our 
statistical neighbours.  

 
4.27 Work to ensure a whole systems approach to fostering, to develop a foster to adopt 

scheme for Haringey led by senior practitioners is planned. The service are 
progressing contractual arrangements with Coram to undertake recruitment and the 
assessment function of adopters including a fast track assessment process for 
second time adopters. 20 adopters were approved in 2014/15. 

 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee:  6 July 2015  

Adoption and Fostering Performance Data

Appendix 

(section 5)

P
age 27



Introduction 

• This slide pack sets out the key data in relation to children becoming looked 

after, and our performance on fostering and adoption in Haringey.

• The data is intended to:

– illustrate the context in Haringey and our performance

– initiate an open debate about strengths and areas for focus– initiate an open debate about strengths and areas for focus

• There are three broad sections : 

1. Haringey’s looked after children and entrants to care

2. Placements

3. Leaving care and adoption

2

P
age 28



1. Haringey’s looked after children and entrants to care

P
age 29



0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

LAC at 30th April 2015 by Age, Gender and Legal Status 

• At 31 May 2015 there were  453 looked after children (LAC) in Haringey

• 231 children and young people in care are over 13 years old. 51% of the overall LAC  

• Most CYP accommodated under s.20 are over 13 years old and there are a significant 

number of males (52) accommodated under s.20

• The 0-5 males also show a fairly large number accommodated under s20 although not in 

the same proportion as 13+

0

F M F M F M F M

0-5 6 - 9 10 -12 13  - 17

Full care order interim care order on remand 

Placement order Police protection Section 20 

child assessment order in LA accom

P
age 30



300

400

500

600

700

300

400

500

600

700

Children in care including unaccompanied asylum seeking children

Haringey

SN Average

London Average

Baby  P

0

100

200

300

0

100

200

300

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

P
age 31



-10

0

10

20

30

40

Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15

Net care movement April 2014 - April 2015

• Since July 2014 there has been a net reduction in the LAC population month on month, 

with particularly large net decreases (19) in November 2014 and February 2015

• However, we know the rate of decrease has slowed and the numbers went up again 

slightly in May 2015

-40

-30

-20

started ceased net position

P
age 32



40

60

80

100

120

140

LAC at 30th April 2015 by length of time in care 

0-5 years

6-12 years

13 -17 years

• 13-17 year olds are most likely to have been in care for more than 4 years

• Excluding 4+ years data, LAC are most likely to be in care for 1-2 years

• There is a significant number of children under 5 that have been in care for 4+ years

0

20

40

1 week -less than 1 

month 

1-3 months 3-6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4 years +

P
age 33



Full care 

order 

251

interim care 

order 

50

on remand 

6

Placement 

order 

62

2014

Full care 

order 

257

child 

assessment 

order in LA 

accom

1

interim care 

order 

24

on remand 

2Placement 

order 

57

2015

Legal status of all Looked after Children on 30th April

• The majority of LAC are accommodated under a full care order (57%), an increase from 

50%  in April 2014

• There has been a decrease in the number of LAC accommodated under police protection 

order from 9 to 5 – though more than 72 hours has expired in all of these cases

• The number of interim care orders has been reduced by half

• The number of s20s has decreased but only in line with the overall reduction in LAC 

Police 

protection 

9
Section 20 

125

Police 

protection 

5Section 20 

107

P
age 34



10

15

20

25

n
u

m
b

e
r
 o

f 
c
h

il
d

r
e

n
 

LAC under section 20 by length of time and age March 2015  

0-5 years

6 - 12 years

13 - 17 years 

• 78% of the section 20s were  children aged between 13-17. 

0

5

1 week -less than 1 

month 

1-3 months 3-6 months 6 months - 1 year 2-3 years 1-2 years 3-4 years 4 years +

length of time on section 20

P
age 35



P
age 36



2. Placements

P
age 37



20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Children who started to be LAC by Placement 

2013/14

2014/15

• There has been a reduction in children placed in foster care, residential accommodation,  

in secure units  and young offender institutions compared to the same period last year

• There were small increases in the numbers placed with their parents and in health settings

0

P
age 38



foster placement with 

other foster carer 

57%

family centre/M&B unit

3%

foster with 

relative / friend 

11%
NHS or other est. Medical/ 

nursing care 

2%placed for adoption with 

consent 

25%

LAC at 30th April 2015 aged 0-5 by placement type

• 63 children under 5 are in care, The majority of 0-5 year olds are in fostering placements (57%), 

an increase of 4% compared to last month. . 

• 11% of under 5s are fostered with family or friends

• 2% of children under 5s are in parent assessment placements

• 3% of children under 5s are in family centre / M&B unit 

• 25% of under 5s are placed for adoption 

25%

placed with own parents

2%

P
age 39



foster placement with 

other foster carer 

54%

foster with relative / friend 

10%

NHS or other est. 

Medical/ nursing care 

1%

homes & hostels

7%

placed with own parents

5%

LAC at 30th April 2015 aged 13 - 17 by placement type

• More than half 13-17 year olds are in fostering placements, 54% in fostering placements

• 22% of 13-17 year olds are in residential placements

• 10% are fostered by friends or family

• 5% are placed with own parents 

• 1% are either in young offending/prison or secure units

• 7% are placed  in homes & hostels 

res accomm

22%

residential care home

0%
secure unit

1%

young offender 

inst. Or prison

0%

P
age 40



IFA

54%

Friend/relative (sec38) 

pre approval fostering 

12%

In house

32%

LAC in Foster Placement at 30th April 2015 

At the end of April 2015

• 54% of the total Lac cohort were IFA (agency fostering)

• 32% of LAC foster placements were in house (task centred) 

• 2% are with Connected person foster carers 

• 12% are with Friend/relative (sec38) pre approval fostering

kinship fostering 

2%

P
age 41



210
218

201

184

165 162
155

149

100

150

200

250

LAC in Foster Placements 

• Since Q2 there has been a consistent reduction in the number of children looked after in 

IFA placements. 

0

50

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2014/15

IFA in house foster placements 

P
age 42



3. Exiting care and adoption 

P
age 43



40

60

80

100

120

Children who ceased to be LAC 

2013/14

2014/15

• 260 children ceased to be looked after in 2014/15

• 91 (35%) returned home to their parents, 12 were only looked after for one day, 37 were 

looked after for less than one month, half  for more than two months

• There was an increase in the number of children granted special guardianship

• The number of children adopted reduced from 40 in 2014 to 25 in 2015

0

20

accom 

remand 

ended 

Adopted child moved 

abroad 

left care to 

live with 

parents 

other reason 

(including 

18th 

birthday)

returned 

home to 

parents 

setenced to 

custody 

SGO supported 

independent 

living 

unsupported 

independent 

living 

P
age 44



15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Haringey Adoptions and Special Guardianship Orders

SGOs Adoptions SN Adoptions

• There was a reduction on the number of children adopted from 40 in 2014 to 25 in 2015

• A change in case law has resulted in an increase in children achieving permanency with 

connected person in special guardianship placements from 2012

• Focused and targeted work to achieve adoption for a backlog of children in 2014 with 

adoption plans was successful 

• A sustainable volume of adoptions going forward is 20 a year.

0

5

10

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Source:  https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/children-looked-after-in-england-including-adoption--2.

Haringey’s statistical neighbours Croydon, Greenwich, Hackney, Hammersmith & Fulham, Islington, Lambeth, Lewisham, Southwark, Waltham Forest and Enfield

P
age 45



3yr Average 2011-14

2013/16 threshold

400

500

600

700

800

900

Average time between a child entering care and moving in with its adoptive 

family, for children who have been adopted (days) – Haringey performance 

over time

• This is a key national indicator which DfE have written to us and other LAs about 

• Haringey’s performance has improved over the past year with each of the past 4 quarters 

below the published 3 year average for 2011-14

0

100

200

300

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4 2014/15

P
age 46



400

600

800

1,000

1,200

Average time between a child entering care and moving in with its 

adoptive family, for children who have been adopted (days) –

Haringey compared to other authorities

2013/16 threshold

3 year average 2011-14

• Haringey’s 3 year average has improved from 2011-14 to 2012-15 and is better then our 

statistical neighbours but higher than the England figure

0

200

P
age 47



BME

61%

White British 

18%

White 

european 

21%

Haringey LAC at 31st March 2015 by 

ethnicity

BME

72%

white British 

8%

White 

European 

20%

Haringey Adoptions by ethnicity 

2014/15

• Adoption for BME children is a national challenge

• BME adoptions in Haringey in 2014/15 were higher proportionately than the LAC population

• A programme of work around permanency is underway to ensure a whole systems approach 

to fostering, to develop a foster to adopt scheme and concurrent planning with family finding 

methods deployed for children with more challenging needs. 

BME

17%

White origin

83%

England Adoptions 2013/14

P
age 48



 
 

1 

 

Report for: 
Corporate Parenting 
Advisory Committee  
6th July 2015 

Item 
Number: 

 

 

Title: Ofsted Action Plan: Update on progress 

  

Report 
Authorised 
by: 

 
Jon Abbey  
Interim Director,  Children’s Services    

 

Lead Officer: 
Sam Philips 
Head of Projects and Executive Support  

 

 
Ward(s) affected:    All 

 
Report for Non Key Decision: 

 
1. Introduction  

 
1.1 This paper was requested following on from the report submitted to 

CPAC in December 2014 by way of update on progress relating to the 
Ofsted inspection. It is now recognised that all continued improvement 
work relating to Looked after Children is taken forward via the LAC 
Sufficiency Development Board.  
 

1.2 In May 2014 Haringey Children’s Services and the Local Safeguarding 
Children Board were made subject to an unannounced Ofsted Inspection 
of Services for Children in Need of Help and Protection, Children Looked 
After and Care Leavers. 

 
1.3 The inspection concluded on 11 June 2014 and Haringey were judged to 

be a robust ‘Requires Improvement’ grade. 
 
1.4 There were 17 direct recommendations within the report for Haringey 

Children’s Services, all of which were accepted by the local authority and 
addressed through the development and implementation of the Haringey 
Getting to Good Action Plan. 
 

1.5 The plan was submitted to Ofsted on 21 October 2014 and on  
5 November 2014 the local authority were notified that Ofsted confirmed 

Agenda Item 9Page 49



 
 

2 

 

that the plan ‘satisfactorily reflects the recommendations and priorities of 
the inspection report’.  
 

1.6 Recommendations have subsequently been incorporated into service 
delivery plans across the directorate to ensure that requirements are 
embedded within all service delivery and improvement activity. 
 

 
2. Ofsted Recommendations relating to Looked After Children 
 
 

a. Ensure that sufficient in-house and local foster 
carers are recruited, so that more looked after 
children and young people can live nearer to their 
communities, if appropriate 

 

We have 
increased the 
numbers of 
our in-house 
foster carers 
and reduced 
the number of 
IFA 
placements. 

b. Ensure that all looked after young people have a 
pathway plan which is produced jointly with them, so 
that they know and understand their plan and 
recognise its relevance in supporting their 
progression into independence and adulthood 

 

This is an 
area of 
challenge 
which has an 
action plan in 
place 

c. Ensure that life story work is completed at the first 
opportunity, so that looked after children understand 
their life journey in the care system 

 

This is an ara 
of challenge 
which has an 
action plan in 
place 

d. Ensure that risks posed to looked after children and 
young people are comprehensively assessed, 
documented and reviewed, taking into account the 
changing age and stage of their lives, and that 
managers and social workers consider the life 
histories of children and relevant research when 
making medium- and long-term plans for children. 

 

Quality 
Assurance 
functions 
have been 
strengthened 
to support 
practice 
improvement 
in this area 
and others. 
There is 
further work 
to do. 
 

e. Ensure that the role of the Independent Reviewing The role of 

Page 50



 
 

3 

 

Officer (IRO) is enhanced so that they properly 
challenge drift and delay in plans and escalate 
concerns about the quality of service provision, so 
that risks posed to specific groups of children and 
young people are known and understood and action 
is taken. 

the IRO has 
been 
strengthened 
by 
introducing 
strengthened 
mechanisms 
and tools. 
The QA unit 
itself has 
been re-
engineered to 
make it more 
robust. 

f. Ensure that all looked after children and care leavers 
know and understand their rights and entitlements 
and know how to make a complaint, to ensure that 
their needs are fully understood and acted on 

A guide book 
and a DVD 
has been 
produced 
with some of 
our LAC and 
this has been 
disseminated. 

g. Ensure that care leavers are informed about their 
health histories and that they know and understand 
the arrangements to access their health records 
should they need to in later life. 

A guide book 
and a DVD 
has been 
produced 
with some of 
our LAC and 
this has been 
disseminated. 

 
 
  
In addition, there has also been significant activity and improvement since the 
inspection across the whole journey of the child. In relation to Looked After 
Children this includes; 

2.1  

• The rate of Children in Care has safely reduced to be more in line 
with our statistical neighbours (in October 2014 this figure was 514 
– in May 2015 the figure is 453). 
 

• Performance has improved on the Initial Child Protection 
Conferences held within 15 working days. Performance in October 
was 54%; this month the performance has reached 94%. This 

Page 51



 
 

4 

 

means that child protection concerns are addressed in a timely 
and effective way. 

 

• Through the work of the sufficiency board a review of panels for 
our looked after children has been undertaken to ensure that 
decision making and outcomes are as robust and effective as 
possible.  

 

• Mosaic has been successfully implemented – which means the 
case management system used by social care staff is updated and 
will yield a number of process benefits. 

 

• There has been a consistent reduction in looked after children 
placed in IFA placements. 

 

•  Special Guardianship Orders have increased.  
 

• The Quality Performance Network has been established. This 
brings together all senior managers in Children’s services to 
review and monitor service delivery in terms of both performance 
and quality. 

 

• The evaluation programme has been fully implemented and the 
service has just completed the third evaluation cycle, with 
recommendations taken forward as part of our continuous 
improvement agenda.  

 
 

2.2 It is anticipated that Haringey Children & Young Peoples Service 
could be inspected next in 2016; this is indicative and based upon the 
HMI’s three year regime. 

 
2.3  Through the Quality Performance Network (and all CYPS 

improvement forums) the service maintains its ‘readiness for 
inspection’.  

 

Page 52



C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

10 questions to ask if you’re 

scrutinising services for 

looked after children 

Agenda Item 11Page 53



Introduction 

This guide has been commissioned by Local 

Government Improvement and Development 

(LG Improvement and Development) and 

written by the Centre for Public Scrutiny 

(CfPS). It follows on from a previous guide 

produced by CfPS for LG Improvement 

and Development on scrutiny of children’s 

safeguarding services, and forms part of 

a suite of offers for elected members and 

others around children’s services. 

LG Improvement and Development supports 

improvement and innovation in local 

government, focusing on the issues that 

are important to councils by working with 

them to develop and implement sector led 

support and challenge. The leadership and 

development programme for councillors 

is a key part of this. The Centre for Public 

Scrutiny is an independent national charity 

which carries out research, supports on-line 

networks and provides training, development 

and events to promote and improve 

public scrutiny and accountability across 

government and the public sector. 

The author of this guide is Jessica Crowe, 

Executive Director of CfPS, and valuable 

comments, examples and advice have 

been provided by Claire Burgess of LG 

Improvement and Development and a group 

after children. Members of this group include: 

Rob Davison, Adam Hadley, Rob Mack, 

Sarah Morris, Julia Regan, Andrea Thwaite, 

Suzanne Triggs, Caroline Webb, Councillor 

Les Lawrence, Councillor Andrea Milner, and 

looked after young people from Cheshire 

West and Chester. Thanks are due to all 

those who contributed their time, experience 

and expertise. Any mistakes are the author’s 

own. 

The guide is one of a series of ‘10 Questions 

to ask if you’re scrutinising…’ guides 

produced by CfPS on a range of topics. The 

guides aim to provide clear and succinct 

the key issues to cover in a scrutiny review of 

that topic, as well as jargon-busting, links to 

further information and case studies. 

The ten question areas and their detailed 

questions can be used by overview and 

scrutiny committees (OSCs) to scope 

a review that takes an overview of all 

services relevant to looked after children, 

or to focus on an area of particular interest. 

The questions can also be used to gather 

information during the course of the review 

and to frame evidence sessions with 

witnesses. 

Please note that to the best of the author’s 

knowledge all information is correct at 

the time of printing. However, it was 

produced shortly after the election of a new 

government in 2010 and the new government 

has committed to publishing a revised 

set of slimmed down guidance relating to 

care planning in March 2011. Readers are 

advised to check Department for Education 

website (www.education.gov.uk) for the latest 

information. 

10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 2

Page 54



Key points  

Children in the care of a local authority 

are one of the most vulnerable groups in 

society. The majority of children in care are 

there because they have suffered abuse 

or neglect. At any one time around 60,000 

children are looked after in England, although 

some 90,000 pass through the care system 

each year. 

When they are elected, all councillors take 

on the role of ‘corporate parents’ to children 

looked after by their local authority. They 

have a duty to take an interest in the well-

being and development of those children, 

as if they were their own children. Although 

the lead member for children’s services has 

particular responsibilities, the responsibility 

to act as corporate parents is held by all 

councillors, regardless of their role on the 

council. 

Overview and scrutiny offers a key way in 

by giving councillors the opportunity to ask 

searching questions of a range of service 

providers and assure themselves that 

children in the care of the local authority are 

being well looked after. 

Overview and scrutiny also offers 

opportunities for councillors to hear directly 

from children looked after by the authority 

and to ensure that their voices are heard 

when considering the effectiveness and 

impact of services. This should include not 

just children’s care services, but other areas 

which may have an impact on the lives of 

children in care (and leaving care), such as 

housing provision, crime and feeling safe in 

the community, access to public transport, 

the quality of schools and leisure activities. 

In March 2010 the government introduced 

new regulations and guidance to improve 

the quality and consistency of care planning, 

placement (where and how children are 

looked after) and case review for looked 

after children. It includes statutory guidance 

to ensure there is enough accommodation 

locally for looked after children, as well as 

guidance on improving their educational 

attainment. 

This was part of the implementation of the 

Children and Young Persons Act 2008 and 

the Care Matters White Paper, and it updated 

and consolidated previous guidance around 

the 1989 Children’s Act and other legislation. 

Slimmed down guidance is anticipated from 

the new government by April 2011. At time 

of writing the 1989 Act, 2008 Act and March 

2010 guidance provide the basic statutory 

framework governing services for looked 

after children. 

This document also refers to a number 

of performance indicators for children’s 

services which were part of the National 

Indicator Set. These NIs are to be replaced 

with a single agreed list of ‘Whitehall data 

requirements’. Authorities may still want 

to collect such information to help them 

manage and compare their own performance 

so the references to NIs have been left as 

they mostly capture the key performance 

questions. 

10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 3 

Page 55



Jargon-busting 

‘Looked after children’, 
‘children in care’ 

The term children in care includes: all 

children being looked after by a local 

authority; those subject to a care order under 

section 31 of the Children Act 1989 (see 

below); and those looked after by a voluntary 

agreement with their parents under section 

20 of that Act. They may be looked after by 

family members, foster carers or staff in a 

residential children’s home. Children and 

young people from overseas become ‘looked 

after’ if they have no one with parental 

responsibility in this country. 

Children ‘at risk’ of harm 

These are children about whom there are 

concerns that they are or may be at risk of 

suffering harm through abuse or neglect. 

Children considered ‘at risk’ have a Child 

Protection Plan which should be regularly 

reviewed. 

‘Children in need’ 

Children in need are a wider group of 

children and young people who have been 

assessed as needing the help of services 

to achieve a reasonable standard of health 

or development. They have a Child in Need 

the assessment 

‘Care leavers’ 

Care leavers are those who have been in 

public care for at least 13 weeks from the 

age of 14 onwards and therefore qualify for 

services to support them once they leave. 

This may be at 16 or up until 24 if they 

remain in full-time education. 

Care Order – Section 31 
Children Act 1989 

Care Orders are made by the court if a 

and there is no likelihood of improvement in 

the standard of care provided for a young 

person. The local authority then shares 

parental responsibility with the parent(s) and 

can make the decisions that a parent would 

normally make. A Care Order expires when 

the young person reaches 18 (or sometimes 

19) years of age, or when an Adoption 

Order is made and the child is permanently 

adopted. 

Interim Care Order – Section 
38 Children Act 1989 

If the local authority is concerned that a child 

harm’, they can apply to the court for an 

Interim Care Order, which is a time-limited 

order renewed while care proceedings for the 

child continue through the courts and other 

authorities. 

10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 4

Page 56



Emergency Protection Order 
Section 44 Children Act 1989 

An Emergency Protection Order removes a 

child into accommodation provided by or on 

behalf of the local authority and is granted 

by the court if there is reasonable cause 

to believe that the child is likely to suffer 

Regulation 33 visits 
(now regulations 29-33) 

What used to be known as ‘Regulation 33’ 

visits are the management inspections that 

have to be made regularly of residential care 

homes, and during which the visitor should 

speak to any staff and residents who may be 

present during the visit. 

This is a duty placed on local authorities 

under 22 (G) of the Children Act 1989 

(amended by the 2008 Act) to ensure there 

accommodation must be provided ‘where 

reasonably practical’ (lack of resources is not 

considered a barrier), and having ‘regard to 

and a range of accommodation’. 

Independent Reviewing 

The Children and Young Persons Act 2008 

requires local authorities to appoint a named 

IRO for each looked after child who will 

spend time with that child prior to any review 

of their care plan so that they personally 

establish the child’s wishes and feelings 

and can ensure that these contribute to the 

review. 

The Pledge 

The Care Matters White Paper envisaged 

the Pledge, or as young people preferred to 

call it, ‘the promise’, as a key communication 

tool between children and young people and 

the authority responsible for ensuring they 

receive the parenting they need. Every child 

and young person’s care or pathway plan 

the Pledge will be delivered for that individual 

child and it will be monitored by the local 

Children in Care Council (see below). 

Children in Care Councils 

The Care Matters White Paper and the 

subsequent Act required local authorities 

to set up a Children in Care Council to 

enable regular, good quality dialogue and 

involvement in developing and delivering 

services. There should also be mechanisms 

in place for involving young people in care 

in the recruitment of key staff members, 

such as the Director of Children’s Services. 

The local Children in Care Council will be 

responsible for helping develop and monitor 

the implementation of the Pledge to children 

and young people about the care they 

receive. 

Commissioning 

The process by which an authority decides 

what level and type of services it wants in 

providers of those services, often through 

a competitive process. Increasingly this 

is done jointly, for example with the local 

health service, and in the context of looked 

after children should be focused around the 

needs of individual children. Commissioned 

services should be monitored and evaluated, 

and the process of decommissioning is also 

important to understand. 

10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 5 

Page 57



10 questions to ask when 

you’re scrutinising issues 

and services affecting looked 

after children. 

Page 58



How well does your authority do in commissioning or 

providing services for looked after children, including 

in comparison with other similar authorities? 

There are currently a number of national 

indicators of performance which enable you 

to assess how well your local authority is 

doing in comparison with others (although 

these are to be replaced with a smaller set 

of “Whitehall data requirements”). These 

can be useful in analysing trends and seeing 

other similar areas. As corporate parents, 

councillors need access to this basic 

performance information to enable you to 

ask questions of those responsible, but bear 

in mind that scrutiny should not duplicate 

the work of the council’s own performance 

management. Ofsted reviews can provide a 

useful source of information on performance 

and trends but data needs careful 

interpretation as performance depends 

strongly on context. 

  How many looked after children are there 

per 10,000 children? 

  Who are your looked after children in 

terms of age, gender, ethnicity, religious 

or cultural background and disability, and 

what needs and challenges does this 

  What percentage of looked after children 

cases are reviewed within the set 

timescale? (NI66) 

  Do children understand what’s happening 

in their reviews and what’s going to happen 

as a result of their case review? Does 

anyone ask them this? 

Commissioning of services is becoming 

increasingly important and members need 

to ensure that arrangements are robust and 

secure ‘value for money’ (particularly in the 

light of current and future cost pressures) 

and also that they work in the best interests 

of the children. 

  How many services are jointly 

commissioned, either with other authorities 

or with partner agencies such as the 

Health Services? 

  How will any changes in local health 

service structures, for example the 

proposed move to GP commissioning, 

impact on any joint commissioning 

arrangements? 

Cost comparisons can be a good indicator of 

how effectively your authority is providing or 

commissioning services, for example: 

  How much does it spend on court costs 

compared with other similar authorities and 

why? 

  What level are directly commissioned 

foster carers’ fees set at and how much 

is spent on private and voluntary sector 

fostering agency fees? 

  What is the cost of your residential 

provision by comparison with other areas? 

  How much do you spend on out-of-area 

placements for looked after children? Is 

this rising or falling? 

10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 7 

Page 59



How well do your children in care do at school, 

both academically and in terms of other kinds of 

achievements? 

In 2008, 14 per cent of looked after children 

compared to 65.3 per cent for all children. 

Ensuring looked after children have the 

right support to be able to participate fully 

in school life, and that their school career is 

not disrupted by constant placement moves 

can make a big difference. They may well 

have lost out on education because of the 

circumstances which led to them entering 

care and need help to catch up – a high 

proportion of looked after children see 

entering care as having been good for their 

education. 

  What results are achieved by looked after 

children compared with other children at 

local schools, eg what proportion of looked 

  What plans does the council have to raise 

the educational attainment of looked after 

children? 

  Are looked after children able to attend 

homework clubs and what support is 

provided to gifted children as well as 

those who may need to catch up? What 

difference is this support making? 

  Do you know how well looked after children 

do at school if they are in placements 

outside your local authority area and 

attend non-local schools? 

  How do schools’ admissions policies treat 

looked after children, for example are they 

able to attend the same school as other 

children in their foster family, and how 

many looked after children get into the  

highest performing schools? 

  How do the admissions and other policies 

of any local academies, foundation schools 

or new ‘free schools’ treat looked after 

children? 

  Do you have a ‘virtual school head’ (a 

post designated to look after all looked 

after children in schools across the local 

area, as if they were in a single school), 

designated teachers and designated 

school governors in place? How effective 

are these arrangements? 

In one authority looked after children often 

missed out on after school activities and 

trips because of delays in getting permission 

from social services. As a result of the 

scrutiny review which brought this to light, 

social workers signed blanket permissions, 

enabling foster carers to sign permission 

slips for individual activities and ensuring 

looked after children could take part. 

Celebrating the non-academic achievements 

of children in care and enabling them to 

can offer is also important. Children in care 

should be cared about and not just cared for. 

  Are looked after children able to participate 

in after-school activities and enjoy learning 

and achievement in all its forms? If not, 

what are the barriers? 

8  10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 

Page 60



10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children         9 

  Does your council have a way to celebrate 

the achievements (whether sporting, 

academic, musical, attendance, personal 

bests) of looked after children, and are 

councillors given regular updates? 

  What do looked after children and young 

people themselves say about school? 

In one authority a young person was unable 

to attend an after school photography course 

because for two years no-one would buy her 

a camera: when this came to light during a 

scrutiny review, councillors intervened and 

got action taken to sort it out. 

Page 61



How good is the health and wellbeing of children 

in your care? 

Looked after children and young people 

share many of the same health risks and 

problems as their peers, but they frequently 

enter care with a worse level of health due 

to the impact of poverty, abuse and neglect. 

Evidence suggests that looked after children 

a mental health disorder than all children. 

Local authorities, primary care trusts and 

strategic health authorities must currently 

have regard to statutory guidance issued in 

November 2009 on promoting the health and 

well-being of looked after children, which 

requires children in care to have a personal 

health plan. 

  Are looked after children a priority group 

for getting access to Child and Adolescent 

Mental Health Services (CAMHS) and how 

long are waiting times for referrals? 

  As an at risk group, what access do looked 

after children and young people get to 

services to help with substance misuse, 

sexual health and teenage pregnancy? 

  What support is given to foster carers and 

young people themselves about promoting 

healthy lifestyles? 

  What do looked after children and young 

people themselves say about their health 

needs and priorities and how well they are 

met? 

10  10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 

Page 62



How stable and secure are the lives of your 

looked after children while they are in your care? 

When children and young people enter care 

and are placed either with foster carers, 

in residential homes or even at boarding 

school, they often lose regular contact not 

only with their family members but also with 

other familiar friends, teachers etc. This is 

exacerbated if the ‘placement’ has to be out 

of the area, perhaps because of a lack of 

local foster families or places in residential 

homes. If the placement breaks down, they 

may have to move again, causing yet more 

anxiety and disruption. Ensuring placements 

are stable and work well for children and 

young people is therefore key to their well-

being. There are a couple of indicators that 

your council currently has to measure its 

performance against but also other issues to 

explore. 

  What percentage of looked after children 

move placements three or more times 

during a year ie how stable are your 

placements? (NI62). 

  What percentage of children live in the 

same placement for 2 or more years? 

(NI63). 

  What choice and information do children 

and young people have about their 

placements, eg do they get to meet 

potential foster carers or visit children’s 

homes before they go to live there? 

  If children have to move placement, what 

arrangements are made to keep them at 

the same school, for example transport? 

As a result of one authority’s scrutiny review, 

a looked after children and care leavers’ 

drop-in centre was developed, to provide 

a safe space for looked after children and 

and meet support workers and others in one 

place. 

10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 11 

Page 63



appropriate adoptive families for children for 

whom it is decided this is the right option? 

If a child or young person’s birth family 

relationships have completely broken down 

then the best option for a long-term stable 

family environment may be permanent 

adoption. Nationally, however, there is a 

looked after and prospective adopters. The 

law governing adoption is in the Adoption and 

Children Act 2002, which aligned adoption 

practice with the 1989 Children Act, making 

the welfare of the child the paramount 

consideration. 

  What percentage of children are placed for 

adoption within 12 months of the decision 

to adopt and are subsequently adopted? 

(NI61). 

  How long does it take to make the decision 

to place a child for adoption, particularly for 

new-born babies? 

compared with prospective adoptive 

families, and if there is an imbalance, what 

steps are being taken to address this, eg to 

recruit more adopters by emphasising the 

positive messages about the process and 

value of adopting? 

  How are sibling groups treated and what 

steps are taken to ensure they stay 

together, whether in adoption, fostering or 

residential care? 

  What cross-border arrangements are there 

for adoption, including overseas? 

  What do children and young people, for 

example in your local Children in Care 

Council, say about adoption processes? 

12  10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 

Page 64



How well do your foster care arrangements work? 

Nationally, the proportion of children in care 

placed with foster parents as opposed to 

residential homes has risen to about two-

thirds. This is partly due to the comparative 

costs of the two options but also due to 

a changed policy approach, as fostering 

enables children and young people to live 

in a family environment rather than an 

institutional one. 

Foster carers can play a hugely valuable 

role in stabilising and caring for children from 

disrupted home environments for both short 

and longer periods of time, but nationally 

there is a shortage of people willing to take 

on the role. In the 1990s, independent / 

private fostering agencies developed, which 

placed pressure on local authority budgets 

as their fees were higher than those paid 

directly to councils’ own foster carers. Issues 

around support for foster carers, the rate 

of fees and allowances and their access to 

information may all play a role in ensuring 

they can support the children they look after 

in the most effective way. 

An area of growing concern is around private 

or kinship fostering, where children stay with 

extended family or friends in a private, often 

informal, arrangement, as this is an under-

regulated area. Teachers or the local GP may 

realise that a child is no longer living at home 

with their parents but often the information 

is not passed on and there is no way of 

knowing whether the arrangement is in the 

child’s best interests. 

foster carers locally to meet the needs 

of and match the children needing 

placements? If not, what steps are being 

taken to address this? 

  What support is given to your foster carers 

and how easily can they access it, for 

example therapeutic support and help? 

  What do foster carers themselves say 

about the support they receive, including 

out-of-hours support and about their 

relationships with social workers and other 

professionals? 

  Is there more ‘in-kind’ support that would 

facilitate and make the fostering role 

easier, such as bus passes, access to 

leisure centres etc? 

  What do looked after children and young 

people themselves say about their 

experience of fostering? 

  What does the authority or other agencies 

know about any kinship fostering 

arrangements and are people encouraged 

to share information or concerns? 

Dreamwalls project in Southampton provides 

‘time-out’ breaks for foster carers and has 

reduced by 95 per cent the proportion of 

foster carers leaving fostering. The cost 

equated to £674.43 per child per year, and 

182 children received the service. Using the 

social return on investment (SROI) method 

costs, there was a £1.63 return for every 

£1.00 invested in the project. 

10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 13 

Page 65



How good is the standard of any residential care 

provided or used by your authority? 

Despite the move away from large residential 

institutions, many authorities have retained 

smaller residential units which may be 

suitable for children and young people who 

as a result of their experiences. Councillors 

have said that taking part in what are known 

as ‘Regulation 33’ visits or other arranged 

visits to homes can really bring to life what it 

is like to live in residential care, although they 

have to be carried out with sensitivity. Ofsted 

inspects residential homes and these reports 

(along with the reports from Regulation 33 

visits) should provide a source of information 

and assurance to scrutiny about the standard 

of care provided there. 

  If children and young people are placed 

in residential homes out of your area, 

particularly if they have to go to schools 

under a different education authority, what 

information do you get about how well 

they are doing or about the standard of the 

do you have to improve things? 

  What do looked after children and young 

people themselves say about their 

experience of living in residential care? 

  How are any complaints about standards 

of care in residential homes and issues 

such as bullying dealt with? How many are 

there and what happens as a result? 

In Kirklees, looked after children can access 

the KicK (Kids in care Kirklees) website. 

From here they can go on a virtual tour of all 

the residential homes by watching a video 

made and narrated by looked after young 

people who live there, to tell them what it’s 

like. The website also enables them to ‘rate’ 

their reviews and foster placements on-line, 

accounts of children and young people’s 

experiences of care. 

14  10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 

Page 66



What support does your authority provide to 

young people leaving care and how effective is it? 

For many young people, leaving care can 

be daunting and confusing. The Children 

(Leaving Care) Act 2000 sets out local 

authorities’ responsibilities to help children 

leaving care develop a ‘pathway plan’ to 

independence, with the help of a personal 

adviser. While care can end at the age of 

16, it will continue until age 18 if the child 

remains at school. Continuing assistance 

with education or training continues to the 

end of the agreed programme, even if it 

takes some past the age of 21. 

Care leavers are still over-represented in 

prison populations and the unemployed, 

demonstrating that the experience of being 

in – and leaving – care still does not prepare 

young people well for adult life. If looked after 

children followed the same paths as other 

children into further education, training and 

jobs, it could save the economy £50 million 

each year. 

In Rotherham, scrutiny called representatives 

from Job Centre Plus, the council’s 

Services to a hearing following concerns 

expressed by care leavers about distress 

NCH Bridges Project reported that since the 

intervention of scrutiny, delays in processing 

As well as reducing the further risk of social 

leavers, there was also a reduction in the 

number of emergency payments to care 

leavers. 

  How many care leavers is your authority 

still in touch with a year after they have left 

the care of the authority? How many are 

they in touch with after three years? 

  Are former looked after children ever 

asked to help children currently in care by 

talking about their experience or giving 

advice? 

  What do you know about the life outcomes 

of the children who were formerly in your 

authority’s care? 

  How many formerly looked after young 

people are NEETs (not in education, 

employment and training)? 

  What support do young people leaving 

care receive around access to housing, 

tenancy support, employment, access 

and training? For example, does the local 

authority offer apprenticeships to care 

leavers or support with CV writing and 

interviews? What happens as a result? 

  What do former looked after children and 

young people themselves say about their 

experience of leaving care and the support 

that is / was provided? 

10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 15 

Page 67



16          10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 

In one authority a specialist scrutiny group 

on Corporate Parenting enabled looked 

after young people to feed views directly to 

scrutiny. As a result of this group, the Care 

Leavers Grant (given to all young people 

leaving care to buy things for setting up 

home when they left care) was increased 

from £750 to £1000. Young people said 

£750 wasn’t enough, members agreed and 

comparison with other authorities showed 

that the grant level was low, so it was agreed 

to increase it. 

Page 68



How effective is your professional workforce of 

social workers and others responsible for running 

services for and working with looked after children? 

Many authorities have struggled to recruit 

with vulnerable children. This can be a key 

cause of poor performance around reviewing 

cases on time and picking up and acting on 

issues raised by children, foster carers and 

for managing staff and services, members 

can play an important role in checking that 

are aware of their responsibilities to looked 

after children, for example in housing 

departments, environment and leisure 

services, education, legal services and the 

health service. 

  What are levels of social work staff 

vacancies, turnover, stress-related 

sickness, use of agency staff and ratios 

social workers and what action are 

management taking to address these? Are 

they learning from innovative schemes 

elsewhere to manage staff resources most 

effectively? 

  What continuity of social worker support is 

there for looked after children and what are 

the case loads carried by social work staff? 

  Is there evidence that staff from across the 

authority and other partners are working 

together to deliver what looked after 

children need? 

  What attitude do social workers have to 

their work? Do they enjoy working with 

children and young people? 

  Do they have time for therapeutic work 

with looked after young people or do they 

get bogged down in paper work and what 

management action is taken to address 

this? 

  What do looked after children and young 

people, foster carers and prospective 

adopters say about their experience of 

engaging with social workers and other 

professionals? 

  Are looked after children and young people 

involved in recruitment and development of 

services? 

10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 17 

Page 69



council’s responsibilities as a ‘corporate 

parent’? 

It may be impossible to expect all elected 

members to share the same level of 

commitment to the issue of looked after 

children. However, they do share the same 

level of responsibility and so there are certain 

basic expectations of the systems, processes 

and support that should be in place to enable 

of State Frank Dobson MP’s original letter to 

all councillors about their role as corporate 

parents, launching the Quality Protects 

Programme in 1998, said: 

“Elected councillors have a crucial role. Only 

you can carry it out. You can make sure that 

bring a fresh look and common sense. As 

councillors you set the strategic direction of 

your council’s services and determine policy 

and priorities for your local community within 

the overall objectives set by Government.” 

councillors can hear directly from looked after 

children about what matters to them. This 

could be through informal discussions, visits 

by elected members to residential homes 

or involving looked after children and young 

people when reviewing services of interest to 

them. 

It is not only councillors who are corporate 

(not just in children’s services departments) 

share in the responsibility and other partners 

also have a duty to cooperate to ensure 

looked after children’s needs are met. 

  Do looked after children and young people 

know who their ‘corporate parents’ are? 

What do they say about what they expect 

from local councillors and others acting as 

their ‘corporate parents’? 

  Do all members receive mandatory training 

on their roles and responsibilities as 

corporate parents when they are elected 

and is this refreshed during their term of 

  Are there appropriate opportunities for 

elected members to meet and listen 

to looked after children and young 

people, and to celebrate and praise their 

achievements when they do well? 

  Is there an active Children in Care Council 

which regularly meets with elected 

members and others in authority (across 

the council and other partners) to express 

the views and needs of looked after 

children locally? 

  How are children and young people’s 

complaints responded to and what is learnt 

from them? 

One authority has encouraged councillors 

to ‘adopt’ a residential home in order to 

encourage greater responsibility for and 

interest in each home by elected members 

and provide continuity between visits. These 

members could be important witnesses to 

any scrutiny inquiry. 

18  10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 

Page 70



Case studies 

LB Camden 

Corporate Parenting Scrutiny Committee 

Children Looked After by Camden – 

early scrutiny pilot examining Camden’s 

performance as a corporate parent. The 

review took written and oral evidence, 

members visited children’s homes and other 

consultation events, and sent questionnaires 

to LAC, care leavers and foster carers. 

Report available on LB Camden website: 

http://tiny.cc/jsntm 

Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council 

Scrutiny Review Group 

The Role of Councillors as Corporate 

Parents – a review that compared 

Rotherham’s performance with other 

authorities. It heard from looked after 

children and young people, foster carers and 

others, and recommended a clearer focus 

and commitment, including more regular 

opportunities for members to meet looked 

after children. Report available in CfPS 

library: http://tiny.cc/6pfck 

Derby City Council Children & Young 

People Commission 

Looked After Children – a cross cutting 

review for which evidence-gathering 

was conducted in one intensive week 

of interviews and meetings, and with a 

and recommendations. These cover social 

work, fostering and residential placements, 

adoption, health, leaving & aftercare and 

education. Report available in CfPS library: 

http://tiny.cc/uzda5 

Buckinghamshire County Council 

Children’s Services Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 

Maximising the Potential of Looked After 

Children – a review examining issues 

affecting educational attainment of looked 

after children in the county, including post-16 

and their ability to participate in other aspects 

of school life. Recommendations focus on 

support at transition stages and support for 

foster carers to enable them to better support 

the children they look after. The report is 

available in the CfPS library: 

http://tiny.cc/g1dt6 

Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council 

Children & Young People’s Scrutiny Panel 

Looked After Children & Young People – a 

review to examine whether all agencies 

in Sandwell were continuing to improve 

in relation to corporate parenting support. 

Young people from the Looked After Children 

Board acted as strategic advisers to the 

scrutiny review and closely informed the 

available in the CfPS library: 

http://tiny.cc/9yvno 

10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 19 

Page 71



20          10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 

Cheshire West & Chester Council 

Every Child Matters Select Panel 

Our Children Matter – 39 steps to help bring 

some normality into their lives – a review 

which won the CfPS 2010 Good Scrutiny 

Award for Innovation due to the depth and 

extent of its active involvement of looked 

after young people in gathering evidence for 

the review. They spent days out at Go Ape 

and the zoo, and are now involved in other 

council. The report is available in the CfPS 

library: http://tiny.cc/fcoge and a summary 

can be found in Successful Scrutiny 2010, 

available here: http://tiny.cc/7xj56 

Page 72



References and further  

information 

Key Legislation 

Children Act 1989 

http://tiny.cc/qrzro 

Adoption and Children Act 2002 

http://tiny.cc/lf98m 

Children and Young Persons Act 2008 

http://tiny.cc/951i3 

Care planning, placements and case 

review regulations (England) 2010 and 

statutory guidance 

These documents specify the current 

requirements for care plans, including 

health and education plans, placement 

decisions and monitoring, and case reviews. 

They consolidate previous regulations and 

guidance, providing a central source of 

reference for local authorities’ work with 

looked after children and can be found on the 

old Every Child Matters website: 

http://tiny.cc/7xt9g 

The government has committed to publishing 

a revised set of slimmed down guidance 

relating to care-planning in March 2011. 

See the new Department for Education 

website for information on the policy reviews 

underway: http://tiny.cc/7xt9g 

Welcome to Corporate Parenting – 

a Councillor Development Learning 

Resource 

A booklet and audio CD produced by 

Kirklees, Bradford and Calderdale Councils 

working with a group of looked after young 

people. 

Contact: Angie Aspinall, Councillor 

angie.aspinall@kirklees.gov.uk or 

01484 416 930 

Improving Educational Outcomes 

for Looked After Children and Young 

People, and Improving the Emotional 

and Behavioural Health of Looked After 

Children and Young People 

2 useful Knowledge Reviews containing  

detailed evidence of what works, produced  

by the Centre for Excellence and Outcomes  

in Children’s Services (C4EO), September  

2010, available on www.c4eo.org.uk  

Putting Corporate Parenting into Practice,  

Developing an effective approach.  

A useful guide for scoping a review on  

corporate parenting, by Hart, D and Williams,  

A (2008) National Children’s Bureau  

www.ncb.org.uk  

10 questions to ask if you’re scrutinising services for looked after children 21 

Page 73



Local Government Improvement and Development 

Layden House 

76–86 Turnmill Street 

London EC1M 5LG 

Telephone 020 7664 3000 

Facsimile 020 7664 3030 

Email info@local.gov.uk 

www.local.gov.uk 

Centre for Public Scrutiny 

Local Government House 

Smith Square 

London SW1P 3HZ 

Telephone 020 7187 7360 

Facsimile 020 7665 3887 

www.cfps.org.uk 

CfPS is a registered charity: number 1136243 

The Local Government Group 

is made up of six organisations 

which support, promote and 

improve local government. 

© Local Government Improvement and Development, 

February 2011 

For a copy in Braille, Welsh, larger print or audio, 

please contact us on 020 7664 3000. 

We consider requests on an individual basis. 

L11-029 

Page 74


	Agenda
	5 Ratification of the Terms of Reference
	6 Minutes
	CPAC 160315 Minutes

	7 Matters arising
	8 Performance Management : children and families
	Section 5 Adoption Fostering Performance (2)

	9 Ofsted Report
	11 Role of corporate parent

